
CLACKAMAS C800 RADIO GROUP 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
May 17, 2023 at 9:00AM 

 

Clackamas County Development Services Building Room 119 

150 Beavercreek Rd Oregon City 

 
 

1. Call the C800 Board of Directors meeting to Order – Chair Don Johnson  

2. Roll Call of Partners: (19/10) 

a. City of Canby 

b. City of Gladstone 

c. City of Lake Oswego 

d. City of Milwaukie 

e. City of Molalla 

f. City of Oregon City 

g. City of Sandy 

h. City of West Linn 

i. Aurora Fire District 

j. Canby Fire District 

k. Clackamas County Fire District #1 

l. Colton Fire District 

m. Estacada Fire District 

n. Hoodland Fire District 

o. Molalla Fire District 

p. Sandy Fire District 

q. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue 

r. Clackamas County Sheriff 

s. Clackamas County Health 

3. *Approval of Minutes from April 19, 2023 Board Meeting – Don Johnson 

4. Public Comment – Don Johnson 

5. Communications – Mark Buchholz 

6. *Accept Financial Report for April 2023 – Mark Buchholz 

7. Committee Reports 

• Executive Committee – Don Johnson 

• Technical Committee – Ron Polluconi 

• Citizen Accountability – Don Johnson  

8. Old Business 

• Radio System Management - Ron Polluconi 

➢ Remaining site construction update 

➢ Radio Use Issues 

➢ Home button reprograming  

➢ Streaming delay 

➢ 800 Voice Paging 

➢ DVRS update 

9. New Business 

a. Review of the FY22 Audit – Russ Ries 

b. Review Audit Finding Plan of Action 



c. *Resolution 23-01 to approve Audit Finding Plan of Action 

 

10. Open Agenda 

11. Next Board Meeting:  June 21, 2023 at 9:00am 

12. Adjournment 

 

* indicates action requested 

 



1 
 

CLACKAMAS C800 RADIO GROUP 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

Meeting Minutes of the April 19, 2023 Meeting 
This meeting was held via ZOOM. 

 
1. C800 Board Meeting Called to Order at 0900. 

2. The following were in attendance: 

City of Canby: Chief Jorge Tro Estacada Fire: DC Joe Smith 

City of Gladstone: Chief John Schmerber Hoodland Fire:  

City of Lake Oswego: Chief Don Johnson, Lt. 
Clayton Simon, Sue Scobert 

Molalla Fire: Chief Davis Representing Chief Stafford 

City of Milwaukie:  Sandy Fire District:  

City of Molalla:  TVF&R:  

City of Oregon City: Captain Shaun Davis Clackamas County:  

City of Sandy: Chief Ernie Roberts Clackamas County Sheriff: Capt. Robert Wurpes 

City of West Linn: Chief Peter Mahuna Clackamas County Health: Bill Conway 

Aurora Fire: AC Mike Corless CCOM: Tony Collins, Meg Neece 

Canby Fire: Chief Jim Davis WCCCA: Mark Buchholz 

Clackamas Fire:  C800:  

Colton Fire:  Guests:  

 
 
3. Approval of Minutes – March 15, 2023 Board Meeting 

Chief Schmerber moved and Chief Tro seconded. Motion passed unanimously  
 

4. Public Comment – Chief Don Johnson none. 
 

5. Communications – Mark Buchholz none. 
 

6. Financial Report – March 2023 – Mark Buchholz 

• Mark noted that as of the last meeting there was approx. $650k in outstanding invoices, 
and since then approx. $250k in payments have been received reducing the outstanding 
balance to about $400k 

• Chief Davis moved to approve the report as presented and AC Corless seconded. Motion 
passed unanimously 

 
7. Committee Reports 

Executive Committee – Chief Don Johnson:  Have been meeting regularly to get the budget ready 
for presentation today 

Technical Committee – Ron Polluconi: Mark noted that a date has been set for May 11th for the 
next meeting 

Citizen Accountability – Chief Don Johnson:  none. 
 



2 
 

8. Old Business  
Radio System Management – Mark Buchholz 

• Remaining site construction update: still holding on TDH until summer 

• Radio Use Issues: had 2, failure of a microwave link at Goat Mountain, which resulted in 
some repair work last week. In order to complete the repairs, they had to contract with the 
USFS to clear the road so that they could access the site. Unfortunately, while clearing the 
deep snow, the machinery hit and damaged a gate. This will be repaired in the summer. The 
crew was able to get the microwave repaired sufficiently 

o Received reports from some agencies that there were some issues with their 
transmissions on the radio system. These were logged as dropped calls when the 
radio transmission wasn’t going through. They were able to demonstrate the 
problem and got Motorola involved to take a look. Once they started looking, the 
problem disappeared and they haven’t heard anything further. They did notice that 
this issue coincided with the shifting of the primary core at WCCCA to the backup 
core at CCOM. Once transferred back to the primary core at WCCCA following their 
move, the problem has been resolved 

• Home Button Reprogramming: everyone who was ready are completed 

• Streaming Delay: Equature isn’t delivering a solution, so our next step is to negotiate with 
them since their contract included this service. We will use the credit to get a long term 
solution 

• DVRS update: Have approval for the additional frequencies that were necessary. The plan is 
in place on how it will be deployed to Fire. Next is to develop and install code-plugs for Lake 
O, Hillsboro, Canby, and Banks and begin testing/trial. Once trial is complete DVRS group 
will need to define plan and procedures for roll out to all participating agencies.  

 
 
9. New Business 

• Presentation of FY24 Recommended Budget and User Fees 
i. Mark reviewed the recommended budget as attached in the meeting materials 

• Public Hearing on FY24 Recommended Budget 
i. No public comment or questions 

• Deliberation of FY24 Budget and User Fees 
i. Chief Johnson thanked Mark for his outstanding work to get the budget balanced 

ii. Chair Johnson has recruited the Director of Finance from the City of Milwaukie to 
periodically participate in Board meetings and support the Budget Committee in 
reviewing the budget and financial statements using financial expertise. 

iii. Dave Austin, former Asst. Chief from TVFR and former Director of WCCCA has also 
worked through the budget and we are confident in the numbers presented today. 

iv. Chief Davis asked when we may know more about the ARPA funds from the county. 
Mark noted that the funds have been allocated, and Nancy Bush and her team are 
actively working on the required paperwork. They would like to focus ARPA funds on 
projects about to be completed in the near future, like the new Ski Bowl site (TDH). 

v. Motion to approve the budget as presented today: 

• City of Canby – Approve 

• City of Gladstone – Approve 

• City of Lake Oswego – Approve 

• City of Milwaukie – Absent 

• City of Molalla – Absent 

• City of Oregon City – Approve 



3 
 

• City of Sandy – Approve 

• City of West Linn – Approve 

• Aurora Fire Dist. – Approve 

• Canby Fire Dist. – Approve 

• Clackamas Fire Dist. 1 – Absent 

• Colton Fire Dist. – Absent 

• Estacada Fire Dist. – Approve 

• Hoodland Fire Dist. – Absent 

• Molalla Fire Dist. – Approve 

• Sandy Fire Dist. – Approve 

• Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue – Absent 

• Clackamas County Sheriff – Approve 

• Clackamas Public Health – Approve 
Motion passed with 13 members in favor, none opposed. 

 
10. Open Agenda 

• None. 
 

11. Next Board Meeting will be May 17, 2023 at 9:00AM  Location: DSB 150 Beavercreek Rd RM - 119 
 

12. Adjournment - Meeting adjourned at  9:39 AM 



Jul '22 - Apr 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

401-00  Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 53,539.00 -53,539.00 0.0%
405-00  Members Contracts 73,920.00 76,320.00 -2,400.00 96.9%
410-00  Partners Fees 1,215,144.69 1,198,080.00 17,064.69 101.4%
420-00  Partners Debt Service Zone Cont 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
421-00  Partner Debt Service Microwave 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
430-00  Subscriber Radio Payments 11,561.37 1,065,007.00 -1,053,445.63 1.1%
431-00  Interest Income 62.52 500.00 -437.48 12.5%
435-00  Lease Revenue 71,587.45 92,423.00 -20,835.55 77.5%
440-00  Miscellaneous Income 0.01 350,000.00 -349,999.99 0.0%
450-00  Intergovernmental-Clackamas Co 0.00 4,757,863.00 -4,757,863.00 0.0%

Total Income 1,372,276.04 7,593,732.00 -6,221,455.96 18.1%

Gross Profit 1,372,276.04 7,593,732.00 -6,221,455.96 18.1%

Expense
605-00  Site Rental 204,491.94 263,147.00 -58,655.06 77.7%
610-00  Fuel/Generators 8,708.84 25,000.00 -16,291.16 34.8%
615-00  HVAC Maintenance 10,251.70 60,000.00 -49,748.30 17.1%
620-00  Landscape Maintenance 29,228.31 20,000.00 9,228.31 146.1%
621-00  Office Supplies 161.82 900.00 -738.18 18.0%
622-00  Bad Debt Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
625-00  Generator Maintenance 5,953.53 25,000.00 -19,046.47 23.8%
630-00  UPS Maintenance 5,558.98 4,000.00 1,558.98 139.0%
635-00  Battery Maintenance 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
640-00  Building Maintenance 26,875.54 10,000.00 16,875.54 268.8%
645-00  Insurance 66,218.00 78,000.00 -11,782.00 84.9%

650-00  Utilities 97,004.87 105,000.00 -7,995.13 92.4%
655-00  Consultant Services 5,100.00 35,000.00 -29,900.00 14.6%
657-00  Regional Radio Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
660-00  WCCCA System Fees 963,181.00 963,181.00 0.00 100.0%
665-00  Radio Maintenance Fees 7,460.48 35,000.00 -27,539.52 21.3%

667-00  Radio Replacement Project 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
668-00  Fire Sta Alerting Oper. Expense 0.00 95,000.00 -95,000.00 0.0%
670-00  Legal Services 3,575.00 2,000.00 1,575.00 178.8%
675-00  Financial Services 14,297.00 7,800.00 6,497.00 183.3%
680-00  Audit Fees 6,550.00 7,500.00 -950.00 87.3%
685-00  Miscellaneous Expenses 10,389.18 5,000.00 5,389.18 207.8%
686-00  Meeting Expenses 167.50 1,000.00 -832.50 16.8%
703-00  Capital Outlay

703-01  Buildings & Land Improvement
703-011  Land Improvement 119,543.26
703-012  Building 46,279.52
703-013  Tower 15,803.52
703-014  Generator 4,100.00

Total 703-01  Buildings & Land Improvement 185,726.30

703-02  Radio Backbone
703-021  Simulcast / Master Site 56,512.06
703-022  Subscriber Radios 4,891.98
703-023  Console Equipment 10,285.00
703-024  Paging 21,233.60

Total 703-02  Radio Backbone 92,922.64

703-03  Equipment
703-031  Security System 4,281.31
703-032  DC Power 19,439.38
703-034  Microwave 7,565.50
703-035  Test Equipment 72.00

Total 703-03  Equipment 31,358.19

703-00  Capital Outlay - Other 0.00 5,822,870.00 -5,822,870.00 0.0%

Total 703-00  Capital Outlay 310,007.13 5,822,870.00 -5,512,862.87 5.3%

999-00  Unappropriated End Fund Bal 0.00 23,333.00 -23,333.00 0.0%

Total Expense 1,775,180.82 7,593,731.00 -5,818,550.18 23.4%

Net Ordinary Income -402,904.78 1.00 -402,905.78 -40,290,478.0%

Net Income -402,904.78 1.00 -402,905.78 -40,290,478.0%

9:37 AM Clackamas 800 Radio Group
05/15/23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2022 through April 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount Balance

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

431-00  Interest Income
Deposit 04/30/2023 Interest 4.76 4.76

Total 431-00  Interest Income 4.76 4.76

435-00  Lease Revenue
Deposit 04/04/2023 FBI Deposit 780.00 780.00
Deposit 04/24/2023 FBI Deposit 130.00 910.00
Deposit 04/24/2023 FBI Deposit 324.00 1,234.00
Deposit 04/24/2023 FBI Deposit 1,106.83 2,340.83

Total 435-00  Lease Revenue 2,340.83 2,340.83

Total Income 2,345.59 2,345.59

Gross Profit 2,345.59 2,345.59

Expense
605-00  Site Rental

General Journal 04/01/2023 AJE 34 To record pre-paid April rent ... 1,395.00 1,395.00

Total 605-00  Site Rental 1,395.00 1,395.00

620-00  Landscape Maintenance
Bill 04/30/2023 2023-2... Greenup Enterprises Snow plowing 3,400.00 3,400.00

Total 620-00  Landscape Maintenance 3,400.00 3,400.00

650-00  Utilities
Check 04/03/2023 EFT PGE 290.23 290.23
Check 04/03/2023 EFT PGE 363.04 653.27
Check 04/04/2023 EFT PGE 33.38 686.65
Check 04/04/2023 EFT PGE 592.22 1,278.87
Check 04/05/2023 EFT PGE 323.03 1,601.90
Check 04/06/2023 EFT PGE 344.12 1,946.02
Check 04/06/2023 EFT PGE 445.91 2,391.93
Check 04/07/2023 EFT PGE 420.48 2,812.41
Check 04/10/2023 EFT PGE 231.43 3,043.84
Check 04/12/2023 EFT PGE 276.26 3,320.10
Check 04/14/2023 EFT Comcast 178.30 3,498.40
Check 04/17/2023 EFT PGE 436.40 3,934.80
Check 04/18/2023 EFT NW Natural 34.84 3,969.64
Check 04/18/2023 EFT PGE 152.45 4,122.09
Check 04/18/2023 EFT PGE 314.96 4,437.05
Check 04/18/2023 EFT PGE 320.03 4,757.08
Check 04/18/2023 EFT PGE 338.04 5,095.12
Check 04/18/2023 EFT PGE 436.40 5,531.52
Check 04/18/2023 EFT PGE 609.62 6,141.14
Check 04/18/2023 EFT PGE 903.96 7,045.10
Check 04/19/2023 EFT PGE 275.68 7,320.78
Check 04/20/2023 EFT PGE 769.08 8,089.86
Check 04/24/2023 EFT PGE 359.92 8,449.78
Check 04/24/2023 EFT PGE 476.25 8,926.03
Check 04/28/2023 EFT Canby Utility 190236 142.17 9,068.20

Total 650-00  Utilities 9,068.20 9,068.20

655-00  Consultant Services
Bill 04/30/2023 CIWD-... Consistent Image Web Design Monthly web maintenance - A... 100.00 100.00

Total 655-00  Consultant Services 100.00 100.00

675-00  Financial Services
Check 04/30/2023 Service Charge 20.00 20.00
Bill 04/30/2023 164282 Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP April monthly bookkeeping 550.00 570.00

Total 675-00  Financial Services 570.00 570.00

686-00  Meeting Expenses
Bill 04/05/2023 10622... Oregonian Media Group Public Hearing Notice 66.10 66.10

Total 686-00  Meeting Expenses 66.10 66.10

703-00  Capital Outlay
703-01  Buildings & Land Improvement

703-011  Land Improvement
Bill 04/11/2023 C800-2... Bryce Foster Construction project support 22 Whale Head 1,200.00 1,200.00

Total 703-011  Land Improvement 1,200.00 1,200.00

703-013  Tower
Bill 04/01/2023 INV74... Day Wireless Systems Inc. Electrical materials 23 Goat Mountain 2,108.52 2,108.52

Total 703-013  Tower 2,108.52 2,108.52

Total 703-01  Buildings & Land Improvement 3,308.52 3,308.52

Total 703-00  Capital Outlay 3,308.52 3,308.52

Total Expense 17,907.82 17,907.82

Net Ordinary Income -15,562.23 -15,562.23

Net Income -15,562.23 -15,562.23

9:38 AM Clackamas 800 Radio Group
05/15/23 Profit & Loss Detail
Accrual Basis April 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



Apr 30, 23
Debit Credit

115-00  Cash/Checking Account 442,928.97
11000  Accounts Receivable 368,996.95
120-00  Member Fees Receivable 0.00
12000  Undeposited Funds 0.00
150-00  Prepaid Expenses 1,395.00
160-00  Buildings and Towers 10,956,645.15
165-00  Radio Backbone 2,520,898.80
166-00  Equipment 1,052,983.00
167-00  Work In Progress 0.00
169-00  CIP 51,212,885.21
175-00  Accumulated Depreciation 11,881,375.50
180-00  Deferred O/F-P25 Maintenance 5,812,058.44
201-00  Accounts Payable 7,358.52
201-02  Other Accounts Payable 0.00
202-00  Partner Prepayment 0.00
210-00  Reimb due Clackamas County 0.00
250-00  N/P - CCB (Microwave) 0.00
280-00  Prepaid Lease Income 2,065,694.44
300-00  Fund Balance 0.00
300-01  GLTDAG 0.00
310-00  Investment in Fixed Assets 53,862,036.66
320-00  Retained Earnings, Prior 4,955,231.18
405-00  Members Contracts 73,920.00
410-00  Partners Fees 1,215,144.69
430-00  Subscriber Radio Payments 11,561.37
431-00  Interest Income 62.52
435-00  Lease Revenue 71,587.45
440-00  Miscellaneous Income 0.01
605-00  Site Rental 204,491.94
610-00  Fuel/Generators 8,708.84
615-00  HVAC Maintenance 10,251.70
620-00  Landscape Maintenance 29,228.31
621-00  Office Supplies 161.82
625-00  Generator Maintenance 5,953.53
630-00  UPS Maintenance 5,558.98
640-00  Building Maintenance 26,875.54
645-00  Insurance 66,218.00
650-00  Utilities 97,004.87
655-00  Consultant Services 5,100.00
660-00  WCCCA System Fees 963,181.00
665-00  Radio Maintenance Fees 7,460.48
670-00  Legal Services 3,575.00
675-00  Financial Services 14,297.00
680-00  Audit Fees 6,550.00
685-00  Miscellaneous Expenses 10,389.18
686-00  Meeting Expenses 167.50
703-011  Land Improvement 119,543.26
703-012  Building 46,279.52
703-013  Tower 15,803.52
703-014  Generator 4,100.00
703-021  Simulcast / Master Site 56,512.06
703-022  Subscriber Radios 4,891.98
703-023  Console Equipment 10,285.00
703-024  Paging 21,233.60
703-031  Security System 4,281.31
703-032  DC Power 19,439.38
703-034  Microwave 7,565.50
703-035  Test Equipment 72.00

TOTAL 74,143,972.34 74,143,972.34

9:39 AM Clackamas 800 Radio Group
05/15/23 Trial Balance
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  



Apr 30, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
115-00  Cash/Checking Account 442,928.97

Total Checking/Savings 442,928.97

Accounts Receivable
11000  Accounts Receivable 368,996.95

Total Accounts Receivable 368,996.95

Other Current Assets
150-00  Prepaid Expenses 1,395.00

Total Other Current Assets 1,395.00

Total Current Assets 813,320.92

Fixed Assets
160-00  Buildings and Towers 10,956,645.15
165-00  Radio Backbone 2,520,898.80
166-00  Equipment 1,052,983.00
169-00  CIP 51,212,885.21
175-00  Accumulated Depreciation -11,881,375.50

Total Fixed Assets 53,862,036.66

Other Assets
180-00  Deferred O/F-P25 Maintenance 5,812,058.44

Total Other Assets 5,812,058.44

TOTAL ASSETS 60,487,416.02

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

201-00  Accounts Payable 7,358.52

Total Accounts Payable 7,358.52

Total Current Liabilities 7,358.52

Long Term Liabilities
280-00  Prepaid Lease Income 2,065,694.44

Total Long Term Liabilities 2,065,694.44

Total Liabilities 2,073,052.96

Equity
310-00  Investment in Fixed Assets 53,862,036.66
320-00  Retained Earnings, Prior 4,955,231.18
Net Income -402,904.78

Total Equity 58,414,363.06

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 60,487,416.02

9:39 AM Clackamas 800 Radio Group
05/15/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  

prepaid storage rent for May



Type Date Num Name Due Date Aging Open Balance

Current
Total Current

1 - 30
Total 1 - 30

31 - 60
Total 31 - 60

61 - 90
Total 61 - 90

> 90
Invoice 05/19/2022 2019-2042 Aurora Fire District 05/19/2022 346 225,592.97
Invoice 05/19/2022 2019-2054 Lake Oswego Lake Corporation 05/19/2022 346 7,497.36
Credit Memo 05/19/2022 2019-2064 Wilsonville - PW / Transit 05/19/2022 346 -2,727.77
Credit Memo 05/27/2022 2019-2061 Clackamas County Community College 05/25/2022 340 -675.18
Invoice 06/01/2022 2019-2068 Aurora Fire District 06/01/2022 333 31,912.76
Invoice 06/01/2022 2019-2069 Colton Fire 06/01/2022 333 18,348.55
Credit Memo 06/01/2022 2019-2072 Molalla RFPD 06/01/2022 333 -50,861.31
Invoice 06/08/2022 2019-2039 Hoodland Fire District 06/08/2022 326 121,671.66
Invoice 07/01/2022 22-101 Aurora Fire District 07/01/2022 303 30,720.00
Invoice 07/01/2022 22-106 Colton Fire 07/01/2022 303 20,640.00
Payment 07/01/2022 120213592 KATU -2.09
Credit Memo 12/12/2022 22-155 Molalla RFPD 12/12/2022 139 -33,120.00

Total > 90 368,996.95

TOTAL 368,996.95

9:40 AM Clackamas 800 Radio Group
05/15/23 A/R Aging Detail

As of April 30, 2023

Page 1

These financial statements omit all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. Management has not recorded  
current capital assets, accumulated depreciation, depreciation expense, certain receivables and leases under GASB-87, which is a known departure from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the Unied States of America. In addition, these statements omit the statement of cash flows, which is a known departure from  
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation 
engagement, and therefore no assurance is provided.  









 

CLACKAMAS                5900 NE Pinefarm Court 

800 RADIO                                                                    Hillsboro, Oregon 97124 

GROUP                       (503) 690-4911  

 

 

 

May 18, 2023 
 
 
 
Oregon Secretary of State 
Audits Division 
255 Capitol Street NE, Suite #500 
Salem, Oregon 97310 

 
 
Plan of Action concerning the C800 FY22 audit finding 
 
Clackamas 800 Radio Group (C800) respectfully submits the following corrective 
action plan in response to the deficiency reported in our audit of the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2022.  The audit was completed by the independent auditing firm Jarrard, 
Seibert, Pollard & Co (JSP) and reported the deficiency listed below.  The plan of action 
was adopted by the governing body on May 17, 2023. 
 
The deficiency is noted below and followed by the adopted plan of action and accepted 
timeframe for addressing the deficiency. 
 

• C800 experienced construction cost overruns on a project to construct 
four public safety communication sites totaling approximately $3,900,000.  
Contracts originally awarded for this project were neither amended nor 
changed to reflect the additional costs incurred as a result of unexpected 
issues in supplying power to the four communication sites, resulting in 
failure to comply with Oregon’s public contracting code. 

 
Cause:  C800 does not have a formal process for differentiating between construction 
contract change orders and contract amendments.  Furthermore, C800 does not have 
a process to identify whether a partial or progress invoice against an existing contract 
would exceed the authorized contract amount. 
 
 
On April 26, 2023, the deficiency was discussed during a conference call between the 
C800 Executive Board and the Auditor.  The deficiency was explained and the 
importance of following Oregon’s public contracting code was emphasized.  Effective 
immediately, the Board will require managers to identify whether any invoice being 
submitted for payment would exceed the authorized contract amount and if so, would 
first require the proper contract amendment or change order authorization per 
purchasing rules. 
 
Furthermore, the system for paying invoices will be modified to contain data elements 
of both contract total and cumulative expense (including invoice) against contract to 
prevent exceeding an existing contract in the future. 



On May 17, 2023, this Plan of Action was presented to and approved by the C800 
Board. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________           ________________________________ 
Chief Don Johnson, Chair    Date 
Clackamas 800 Radio Group 
Board of Directors 
 



 

CLACKAMAS                5900 NE Pinefarm Court 

800 RADIO                                                                    Hillsboro, Oregon 97124 

GROUP                       (503) 690-4911  

 

 

 

RESOLUTION 23-01 
 

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT MANAGEMENT’S PROPOSED PLAN OF ACTION 
 

WHEREAS at the completion of the Agency’s FY22 audit, the Auditor presented a finding regarding 

a significant deficiency in internal controls and  
 

WHEREAS the Agency has developed plans to address the finding, as required by the State of Oregon 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby accepts and approves of 

the plan to correct the deficiency, outlined in the letter titled “Plan of Action Concerning the FY22 

Audit.” 

 

 

 

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of May, 2023. 

 

 

 
                                                                  

Chief Don Johnson, Chair  

Clackamas 800 Radio Group 
 






















































	Agenda 05-17-2023
	C800 Minutes 04-19-23
	C800 Reports 04-30-2023
	Clackamas 800 letter for FY22 Audit
	C800 Plan of Action Concerning FY22 Audit
	C800 Resolution 23-01 Audit Results
	Clackamas 800 FY22 Audit

